
 

Finance Commi+ee Minutes for February 10, 2025 
Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
Adams County Board 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Monday, February 10, 2025 at 6:00PM 

Adams County Board Room 
507 Vermont Street, Quincy, IL. 62301 

2nd Floor 
 

Mee$ng Convened at 6:00PM on Monday, February 10, 2025. 
 
Members Present: Travis Cooley, Tim Finlay, Brad Poulter, David McCleary, Marvin Kerkhoff 
Members Absent: None 
Others in AJendance: Ryan Niekamp (County Clerk), Bryden Cory (Treasurer), Terry Bower (Maintenance), 
Jonathan Hoover (Chief Public Defender), Mark Philpot (Public Defender’s Office), Alex Ussery (EMS 
Assistant Chief), Dave Bellis (Adams County Board) 
 
A mo$on to approve the minutes from January 13, 2025, made by Mr. Finlay, and seconded by Mr. 
Kerkhoff.  The minutes were approved unanimously as printed.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Addi$onal Fund Appropria$on – from Jonathan Hoover, Chief Public Defender, in the Amount of $110,000 
– Expense Account – 413-411-4620 – Grants – Client Advocates Program – for a Revised Budget Amount 
of $110,000 – and $110,000 – Expense Account – 413-411-5110 – Salary- Client Advocates – for a Revised 
Budget Amount of $110,000.   The fund appropria$on was explained by Jon Hoover – Chief Public Defender 
– there is new grant funding within his office for a Client Advocate Program.  The grant is a reimbursable 
grant.  He stated that that the cost is zero dollars for the county.  Mr. Hoover stated that the grant has 
allowed him to hire two new employees and funding is secured up un$l the following calendar year.  
Mo$on to approve made by Mr. McClearly, seconded by Mr. Poulter.  Mo$on was approved unanimously.    
 
Addi$onal Fund Appropria$on – from Anthony Grootens, Sheriff, in the Amount of $40,000 – Expense 
Account – 001-231-5724 – Hire Back Expenses-FBI – for a Revised Budget Amount of $40,000 and $40,000 
– Revenue Account – 001-231-4624 – Reimbursement-FBI Hire Back – for a Revised Budget Amount of 
$40,000.  Mo$on to approve the appropria$on made by Mr. Finlay, seconded by Mr. Kerkhoff.  Mo$on 
approved unanimously. 
  
Chairman Cooley brought up the HVAC Bonding.  Treasurer Cory, stated that he and Chairman Aus$n spoke 
with a bonding firm out of Chicago and they presented a powerpoint which Mr. Cory will share with the 
commiJee.  Mr. Cory stated that there are three pieces to the bids – a roof replacement, roof repair, and 
solar construc$on.  The total HVAC project is around $7.7million, $500,000 for roof and $500,000 solar.  
Mr. Cory stated that the bonding should cover all the expenses.  In the past, the county has done around 
20 year repayment plans; however, the last ten years are never as compe$$ve in the interest rate.  The 
first ten years, the rate would be around 4.13%, with the second ten years will be around two basis points 
higher.  The difference between this bonding and the jail bonding is the jail bonding had its own dedicated 
revenue source.  Mr. Cory stated that the county will be paying off one of the current bonds within the 

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D



 

Finance Commi+ee Minutes for February 10, 2025 
Page 2 of 4 

next two-three years and the if the county decides to go with bonding this $me around, the annual 
payment would be transi$oned over to the HVAC bond.  Mr. Cory stated that the county would be looking 
at around $500,000-600,000 per year, at least for the first ten years.  Mr. Cory believed that Benardi 
Bonding is interested in underwri$ng the bonding with bidding it out to the local bank consor$um.  There 
is a required $meline to complete the bonding.  In March the board would need to approve the ordinance 
authorizing the bonding.  At the April mee$ng there would be a reading and public comment on the 
bonding.  The final approval of the ordinance would be then in May.  Mr. Finlay asked in the $7.7million 
es$mate included for Architechnics.  Mr. Cory had to defer the ques$on as he did not have the numbers 
in front of him.  Mr. Finlay asked if the rates could be locked in.  Mr. Cory reiterated the current rate and 
then the 2–3-point basis higher the final ten years.  Mr. Finlay asked if there was con$ngency put into the 
budget.  Mr. Bellis believed there was not.  Mr. Bower stated that there is con$ngency in the budget.  Mr. 
Bower believed that the bids would come in lower than projected.  Mr. Bellis stated that they were 
requested to budget higher due to the solar companies, however, with talking with the solar professionals 
the courthouse is not a good candidate for solar panels.  The commiJee discussed lowering the total 
amount bonding and wishes to include the language to not use the full amount.  Mr. Cooley asked if there 
was a cost savings by paying it off within 10 years instead of 20 years.  Mr. Cory stated that there would 
not be a real big savings by paying it off within ten years and then have a large annual payment.  It was 
commented that the bonding payment from ten years to twenty years was around a $450,000 per year 
difference.  Mr. Kerkhoff asked where the county was at with the jail repayment.  Mr. Aus$n stated that 
the county is slightly above the re-payment schedule.  Mr. Cory went over the annual bond payment 
schedule of the jail bond. Mr. Cory stated that although there is an increase in sales tax revenue, it is 
recommended to hold onto the money as the following ten-year bond interest will eat into that addi$onal 
revenue that has been collected. Mr. Cory stated that the county has statutorily it can issue debt up to 
2.5% of the EAV and currently that is sihng virtually none.  Mr. Aus$n stated that the bonding does allow 
for the county to go back and payback for accounts that are carrying the project currently.  Mr. Cooley 
asked if the county could use part of its own funds to pay for the project.  Mr. Cory stated that there is 
money, however, to tread carefully as some of that money is restricted.  Mr. Finlay asked for Mr. Cory to 
work on gehng a hard number on what the county can, and cannot, self-fund at. Mr. Cory stated he could 
look at it and will include the State’s AJorney.  Mr. Finlay asked how the county would pay for year one.  
Mr. Aus$n stated that there is $10million in the bank so it would catch back up to itself.  
 
The commiJee discussed paying Pay App #4.  Mr. Niekamp reminded the commiJee that the pay app 
Infront of the commiJee is only par$al for only $40,000 for a total amount owed around $190,000 for Pay 
App #4.  It was decided that the county can float the pay apps knowing that it’s going to be reimbursed 
later.   Mr. Bellis stated that Architechnics is around 90% completed and he wanted to make sure they do 
not have their money held.   
 
Mr. Niekamp asked for clarifica$on for the pay app four.  The commiJee decided to pay the en$re amount 
of pay app number four currently.  Mr. Cory stated the county could handle the payment.  Mr. Cooley made 
a mo$on to pay Arch$echnics $40,000 now and then pay the remainder of the invoice once a CD comes 
due.  Seconded by Mr. Finlay.  The commiJee approved unanimously.  
 
Mr. Cooley asked if there needs to be a commiJee and did not see a need for a special commiJee with 
Finance, Mr. Bellis, Mr. Cory, and Mr. Bower.  Everyone agreed.  
 
The commiJee discussed medical insurance and health check 360.  Mr. Aus$n provided a summary.  He 
stated that he wanted to inform the commiJee of how the GLP-1 prescrip$ons as a bridge and that it has 
been bumpy.  To date, all eight, or so, employees have access to their prescrip$on cards.  Coming out of 
the last benefit year, there were over 40 employees on a GLP-1 prescrip$on, today it’s around eight.  Mr. 
Aus$n stated that the bridge program could have rolled out much beJer and the county should have had 

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D



 

Finance Commi+ee Minutes for February 10, 2025 
Page 3 of 4 

beJer agent rela$onship to find out how and why the bad roll out of the bridge-cap program.  Mr. Aus$n 
stated that the commiJee would be interested entertaining an RFP going forward for health insurance.  
Mr. Cory stated that Ms. Carothers is wonderful; however, he would not accept an e-mail going forward 
asking for an immediate wire transfer without prior commiJee approval. Mr. Aus$n stated that only six 
other coun$es within Illinois have offered the bridge program, most other coun$es dropped the GLP-1 
altogether.  Mr. Aus$n stated that the program offers 100% reimbursement once it gets going, but there 
was struggle to get it off on the ground running.  
 
Mr. Cooley men$oned how the ClearGov somware is going.  Mr. Aus$n stated that the December numbers 
are in ClearGov now and January will be in it soon.  Mr. Cooley stated that he just received access the other 
day.  Mr. Aus$n stated that Mr. Cooley is now an administrator in the program. 
 
Mr. Cory provided a handout on IMRF performance (revenue v expense).  Mr. Cory stated that IMRF is the 
strongest pension fund in the state of Illinois.  Each month, employees pay or por$on and then the county 
pays their por$on.  The county budget has a general fund line for the IMRF.  In 2019, the revenue v 
expenses were close. 2020 it was off around $150,000 and in 2024 the difference was of $260,000.  Mr. 
Cory stated that the IMRF fund has been a topic for auditors and bonding agents.  Mr. Aus$n stated that 
there is a lot of fluca$on within the fund and IMRF tells the employers how much to budget for each year 
and that roughly 7-7.5% for payment out.  If there is a bad interest year, the following year the gap would 
be covered within the payments.  In the past couple of years, the finance commiJee decided to cut down 
that line on the levy to eat up some of the extra cash that is in the IMRF fund.  Mr. Aus$n stated that the 
IMRF line has over $2million plus whatever the county is levying this year.  Mr. Cory stated that following 
up on Mr. Finlay’s ques$on about borrowing against the county’s money – a lot of the money is $ed up 
into this IMRF co-mingled line.  Mr. Aus$n stated that if the commiJee looks over the data in front of them 
and find the last five-to-six-year average, to take that into considera$on when looking at how much money 
could be transferred.  Mr. Finlay asked what “expenses” were and Mr. Cory stated that it represents 
contribu$ons made by the county, payments into the fund.  Mr. Finlay asked if that’s funded by the levy.  
Mr. Aus$n stated that it is.  Mr. Finlay asked if the payment amount goes together with the number of 
employees.  It was confirmed that it does.  Mr. Finlay stated that would be a factor to consider as well.  Mr. 
Aus$n stated that another factor is higher-paid employees re$ring and then bringing on new employees 
at a lower pay rate will also be a factor.  Mr. Aus$n stated that it’s the preroga$ve of the Finance CommiJee 
to find out where and what the amount can be that is moved to county general.  Mr. Finlay asked if either 
statutorily or case law needed to be cited and found prior to the transfer be completed.  Mr. Aus$n agreed.  
 
Mr. Aus$n provided an update on the Adams County Land Bank.  He stated that the City of Quincy did not 
feel that they are receiving a lot of benefit from the land bank currently.  Mr. Aus$n stated that there was 
no ac$on to be had at this mee$ng but to find out if the land bank is a valuable tool for Quincy.  He stated 
that the county is the overseer of the taxes and the collector of taxes and so the land bank works because 
of the county can match the powers of the city.  Working together is a powerful tool; however, it does not 
seem to be working together very well.  Mr. Aus$n provided a recap of Morgan County’s landbank being 
very successful with the City of Jacksonville; however, it was noted that Quincy has many different tools at 
its disposal than Jacksonville does.  It was noted that Two Rivers Regional Council is the administrator of 
the program for this area and there is hope that further coun$es would join Two Rivers.  The due for each 
organiza$on is based off popula$on so the City of Quincy is paying more dues annual than the County. Mr. 
Aus$n briefly explained how tax redemp$on works within the State of Illinois. The commiJee discussed 
the tax sale process in more depth and then discussed the benefit of the land bank with the preroga$ve 
of improving the parcels/proper$es.  
 
Mo$on to approve Lisa Gasko’s credit card request was moved by Mr. McCleary and seconded by Mr. 
Poulter.  The mo$on was adopted unanimously.  

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D



 

Finance Commi+ee Minutes for February 10, 2025 
Page 4 of 4 

 
The commiJee adjourned the mee$ng at 7:20pm on Monday, February 10, 2025.  
 
 
 

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D




